‘8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
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Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) ) '
The primary significance of the Historic Lexington Multiple Rescurce Area lies

in the town's growth and develcpment as a major area of commerce in the
Misscuri River valley and in the architecture which was the result of this
growth. Initially develcping as an overland trading center on the Santa Fe
Trail, Lexingten Was'impdrtant“in‘the_;ettlément of western Misscuri and played
a significant role in'"the early séttlement of the frontier. With the develop-~
ment of commerce on the Misscuril River, Lexington attained a unique and pros-
perous position and was for a time head of navigation on thé Missouri
River.' Architecture from these: pericds when viewed individually, includes | .|
some outstanding stylistic representaticns on g state-wide level and when
viewed in its entirety, Lexingtcn constitutes the finest ensemble of antebellum
architecture in Missouri. Less significant periods cof development include the
growth cf the mining industry after the Civil War and a German immigraticn.

In 1815 the first white settler of Lafayette Coungy, Gilead Rupe, settled about
two miles scuth of the present site of Lexington. By 1819 a ferry was estab-
iished across the Misscuri River at Lexington by Capt. William Jack, and the
first hemp crops began to be raised alcng Dover Road (the old Santa Fe Trail).
In the early 1820's the develcpment of the Santa Fe Trail established Lexing-
ton as cne of the primary areas of ccmmerce and trade aleng the frontier. The
trail ran west frcm Dover and connected in Lexington at its eastern boundar-
jes. In April of 1822 "Old Town" was platted. The Santa Fe Trail became the
main thorcughfare, labelled Main Street. Tcday this is South Street. Lexing-
ton rapidly became a primery gathering point for shippers, trappers, explorers,
and settlers. By 1827 trappers and fur traders had made Lexingtcen their cen-
er, aad by 1829 Rcbert Aull had established a private bank as a facility for
his shipping business. Robert was to join with James Aull in 1831 to develop
probably the best kncwn gnd largest shipping business in the West cutfitting
westward bound picneers.” In 1832, a new Court House was built in 0ld Tcown.
A Y

Soon commerce also began growing on the Missouri River, located some distance
north and west from the original town plat’ The, first steambecat, the "Western
Engineer", had passed up the river ag early as 1820. By the early 1830's the
main area of activity began to shift frcm the Santa Fe Trail connection ncrth
to the river, and in 1836 the shift was completed with the platting of the
First Addition of New Town. = . e e o

o . S T AL LU E S I S AL IS LR AR A
The riverfront rapidly became an area of great. detivity'and bustling commerce.t
Broadway became the main business center: 'Wagons were sometimes lined up a
half mile lon§ with'prcduce brought from as far away as Warrensburg or even
Sprinzfield." By 1837 Lexingtcn was an outstanding outfitting post and
trading center and was the eastern terminus of the trade with Mexico and
California. In 1848 Alexander Majors established a freighting business which
was to go cn to become one of the mest successful shipping firms in the na-
tion. By 1858 Russell, Majors and Waddell had increased their equipment to
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3,500 wagens and teams and emplcyed over 4,000 men. 2

In the period between 1835 and 1845 Lexington became the head of navigation
aleng the Misscuri River, and the trade reached its peak. The hemp industry
became an important economic mainmstay. This prospercus period was to last to
the Civil War. A German immigration also tcck place during this peried with
the Germans contributing a valuable s%rvice to the town as mechanics, saddlers,
shoemakers, blacksmiths, wagcnmakers. Prominent German families established
in Lexington during this time included the Winkler Brothers who started the
Winkler Furniture Factory and John Goehner, who established the Geehner Marble-
WwCcrks.,

Lexington's primary significance lies in its architectural develcpment during
these antebellum years. There are approximately 96 residential buildings in
Lexington dating to the pericd between 1836 and 1865. Log construction within
the Multiple Rescurce Area is scarce, due to the fact that the bcundaries re-
flect the develcpment of "New Town" and do not include the Old Town area. One
log structure survives in relatively good ccnditicn, #555.

The most prominent building style of this period was Greek Revival, and Lex-
ington's major architectural rescurce is its wealth of finely proportioned and
classically constructed Greek Revival buildings. The majority of the buildings
in this style are located along South Street (the old Santa Fe Trail) and High-
land Avenue, the street running alcng the Misscuri River bluffs. Usually laid
out in 2 two story brick "L" plan, this type features the classical doorway
with the transom often brcken by two engaged piers flanked by sidelights. This
entry is often acccmpanied by a two-story balconied portico. Perhaps the
finest example cf this type is the Waddell-Pomeroy House, c. 1936 (#26). It
features a finely detailed Grecian meander frieze and is one of the earliest
homes constructed in the First Additicn, along Scuth Street. Other fine ex-
amples include the Waddell-Young House, c. 1840 (#30); the Harkelroads House c.
1840 (#37); the Winkler House, c. 1840 (#95); the Russell Hcuse, c. 1850
(#426) ; the Arnold House, c. 1848 (#509); the Gillen House, c. 1840 (#518); 778
Highland Avenye (#522); the Elizabeth Aull Seminary, c. 1850 (#523); the
Chadwick Hcuse, c. 1850 (#532); the Bculware-Gruber-Hcpkins House, c. 1843
(#535); the old Winkler House, c. 1855 (#565); the Gruber Hcuse, c. 1852
(#584) ; the Capt. Triggs House, c. 1852 (#585); and the Beck-Todhunter House,
c. 1840 (#589). '

There are several Greek Revival examples that exhibit tall parapet chimeys as
opposed to the norm, twin end chimeys. These include 1421 Scuth Street, c.

1846 (#36); the Hinesley House,, c. 1840 (#521); 403 Highland Avenue, c. 1853

(#555); O'Malley-Kelly House, c. 1850 (#557); 509 Highland Avenue, c. 1850
(#559) ; 685 Highland Avenue, c. 1840 (#572); the Ardinger Hcuse, c. 1848
(#281); the Farmer ‘House, c. 1847 (#359); the Egglestcn House, c. 1840 (#144);
and the Goehner Hcuse, c. 1857 (#187). Other styles of this period not in a
Greek Revival mode include a one-story square plan with an attic story. This
type is characterized by a large chimey, usually cn the end, and is most pre-
valent in brick. Highland Avenue has two houses of this type (#547, 564) but
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the style is not confined to any cone area. The Capt. Jack House (#576) is on a
high hill at the foot of Highland Avenue; the Heathman House (#462), and #440
are in the 17th Street area. The Rcmanda House (#252) also features an ornate
curvilinear vergeboard. A fine frame example is the Waltcn House (#595).
Althcugh later than the above, this house features a unique classical mclding
over the dcors and windows on the front facade. Another mode features a flat
rcof with a decorative brick cornice (#65, 497).
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There are several fine examples of small one story Greek Revival residences,
such as the William H. Russell Hcuse, c. 1845 (#489) and 517 Highland Avenue
(#561). Withcut a doubt the finest example cf this type is at 1413 Lafayette
Street (#469), this last hcuse being in an unaltered state. Two other houses
of this period warrant special attention, althcugh they are not of the common
type. The Andreen Hcme c. 1840 (#87), is a Greek Revival example in walnut
clapboard. The Jack Spratt House, c. 1850 (#579) is one of the finest examples
of Temple form Greek Revival to be found in Missouri. In meticulcus condition,
a very significant outbuilding on this property is an octagonal ice house in
the Carpenter's Gothic style.

Greek Revival commercial architecture c¢f the period was not as well preserved
in Lexington as its residential examples. Three fine original commercial Greek
Revival buildings remain in the dcwntown area-- the old Fifth Branch Bank, c.
1846 (#329); a lesser example with cast-iron classical lintels, #335, and a
fine three stcry Greek Revival ccmmercial building c. 1859, #194. The Goehner
Marbleworks Building, c. 1857 (#186) is a charming and significant antebellum
example of the German influence with its facade and landscape almost perfectly
intact, including the nine light windcws and monuments still in the yard.

The most prominent civie structure built during this period was the Lafayette
Ccunty Courthouse, constructed in 1848 (#307). It is on the Naticnal Register
of Historic Places. Several significant examples of ecclesiastical architec-
ture survive from this period. The Cumberland Presbyterian Church, c. 1846
(#289), built in a pedimented Greek Revival style, is the only church in Lex-
ington tc retain its original frame steeple. The First Baptist Church c. 1842
(#357) is a fine two-story brick Greek Revival example. It has unfortunately
lcst its steeple, and stained glass. The Episcopal Church, c. 1848 (#212) has
been described by Charles Van Ravenswaay as "cne of the most impcrtant examples
of religicus architecture in Misscuri.™!/ A fine and unusual early Gothic
example, it is almost unchanged, with the original pews and alter rail still
intact.

Other structures built during this pericd include characteristic stone retain-
ing walls, the finest of which are found on Highland Avenue (#496, 505, 519).

During the Civil War, the Battle of Lexington was fought September 18-20, 1861.
" Confederate fcrces under Sterling Price met Federal trcops under Colonel
Mulligan on a high hill overlocking the Missouri River. This battlefield and a
Greek Revival hcme, the Anderscn Hcuse, used as a field hespital during the
Battle, are now a part of the Battle cf Lexington State Historic Site. Lexing-
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ton has been nctoricus thrcugh the years for its pro-scuthern tendencies. Many
homes carry legends from these days, and an occasional cannonball did escape
frocm the Battlefield and made its way downtcwn. However, there was not an over-
whelming physical change due to the War.

The Civil War brought an end tc Lexington's slavery system and forced the tcwn
to seek new commercial pursuits and industry not dependent upon this system.
The decade follcwing the war saw a major agricultural change to the growing of
grains instead of hemp. The railroad camg in 1871 when the Missouri Pacific
built a branch from Sedalia to Lexingtcn. The railrcad, however, was never

to be a great financial asset to Lexington except as a carrier of coal. Explor-
ation for coal had started socn after the war but did not beccme profitable un-
til after the railroad was established. The mining industry grew rapidly, and
by the Victorian era it had been established as the major financial and econom-
ic base. The mining industry brought an influx of great cultural diversity to
Lexington due to the importation cof French, Swedes, Italians, Syrians, Irish
and others as laboregs. By 1900 over 2,000 persons of foreign descent had been
brought to the area. Many Lexingtonians today share this heritage, and

names such as Collcobert and Giovanelli are common. It was not until after the
First Wcrld War that the mines were to finally give cut.

Architecture during this pericd was manifested in the Italianate and Victorian
style. The Italianate style in Lexingtcn was intrecduced socn after the Civil
War and continued to abcout 1875; there are approximately 23 good examples. Typ
jcal of this style as manifested in Lexington were paired elongated windows
with decorative brick lintels; three-cornered moldings in window frames; arched
and pedimented brick rcoflines with circular windows; deccrative brackets, many
with acron drops; and curvilinear vergeboards. This style is visible in sever-
al small structures in frame such as Wentwcrth Place, c. 1870 (#574) but is
most prevalent in larger two-story examples. Perhaps the finest example is the
Withers Home, c. 1870 (#140). The Tevis House (#596) is very similar. Two
fine structures attributed to James Cheatham, a local architect practicing
around 1870, include the Cheatham House (#583) and its identical twin the Wcod-
Ryland Hcuse (#406). Other significant structures in this style include the
Hickman Hcuse~(#587); the Wilmot House (#134); 1604 Scuth Street (#89); 115
North 17th (#397); the Day House (#407); the L.E. Graham House (#590}; the
O'Donnell Hcuse (#578); and the King House (#216). Significant one story ex-
amples include 1114 Scuthwest Blvd. (#45) and 103 S. 23rd Street (#581).

The Victorian period from 1875 to 1900 is the most evident in terms of con-
struction with approximately 137 buildings cf Victcrian vintage present in the
Multiple Resource Area. However, in architectural terms, the Victorian mode
was never to reach the height of significance fcund in the Greek Revival and
Italianate pericds. Only two Victeorian structures are of transcendent impor-
tance, the Taubman Hcuse, c. 1890 (#88), which is in immaculate condition, and
"the Stramcke Hcuse, c. 1887 (#586). Both were prcducts of mining wealth.

Several frame ccttages are congregated in one block on Main Street, exhibiting
boxed bays, round arched art glass windows, irregular sloped rcofs, and a fi-
nesse in detail and trim not visible in later Victorian mass-produced examples.
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Scme of these have been attributed to James Cheatham, such as. the Haerle Heme,
c. 1887 (#372), which features fine cresting. Other examples are #272, 371 and
370. Queen Anne structures can be seen in brick as well as in frame; the
finest and purest Queen Anne mansion is the Stramcke House, already mentioned.
Other notable Queen Anne houses include the McGrew House (#8)c. 1885; #u87, 527
and 528; #573; #366 and 367; #390; and a recently restored and elegantly fur-
nished Queen Anne, the Whitecastle Hcuse (#591). A particularly fine block of
late Queen Anne hcouses features three cut of four houses in this style.

Several Greek Revival structures were made over by the additions of Victorian
features such as turrets, cresting, brackets, and decorative brickwcrk. Per-
haps the most interesting is the Wright House, c. 1841 and 1885 (#185) in which
the two styles exist side by side on the interior. Two other examples are #501

and 81.

The Italianate and Victorian styles prevalent in the residentlal area were also
extended to commercial structures. Some especially fine Italianate buildings
are still visible downtown, several of them attributed to James Cheatham. Out
of nine of these structures, the Morrison-Wentworth Bank (#324) is the finest
example and is stylistically identical to the Cheatham Hcuse. Other Italianate
commercial buildings include #325, 311, 327, 345, 347, 166, 209, and a fine
example with cast-ircn arched hood molds and an overhanging bracketted cornice,
#203.

Several fine Victorian examples remain, notable #315, an Eastlake example, and
also #333, 343, and 198. A German influence can be seen in the 1900 Leiter
Buildin%o(#211). However, the "Dutch Rcw" that cnce existed on the ncrth side
of Main'¥ was lost to fire.

Lexingtcn began the new century with a pcpulation of lt,190.11 Wentworth
Military Academy had been established in 1880 and provided zn important mili-
tary training establishment for the surrounding area, to beccme even more im-
portant in the next two wars. Lexington actually was to experience a slight
decline, stabilizing during the first quarter of the 20th century. It was
during this périod that much of the historic commercial architecture was lost
to fire; much of the architecture extant from this rebuilding reflects a shrewd
building style of the early teens and 20's, and, when compared to the Italian-
ate high style commercial structures, 1is relatively undistinguished. A major
event of this pericd was the opening of the Lafayette-Ray County Bridge in
1925. The Beaux Arts Post Office was constructed in 1912 (#290), and the
Winkler Theatre in 1925 (#361). The theatre is still relatively intact with
the stage, crchestra pit, and dressing rooms. The Goose Pond Athletic Field
(#363) was drained in 1915 and the present cottonwoods planted. In 1926, the
Gothic Revival Lexington Middle Schcol was constructed. The Missouri Pacific

_Railroad Depot was built c. 1905. Other significant commercial structures in-

clude the Eagle Building in 1915, originally used as a theatre house (#314),
#3U0 with fabricated tiles, c. 1928; #3484, a Beaux-Arts bank facade added to an
earlier structure c. 1910, and #353, a three story tan brick Renaissance Revi-
val example, c. 1930.

Late Victorian styles persist into the 1900's with the two story brick tur-
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retted Tabb Hcuse (#389) being built in 1901. The Sturgis Houée c. 1900 (#368)
is also a fine example cof the diversity apparent at this time, with its shing-
ling and curicus multi-slcping rccfline.

Between 1900 and 1915 approximately 50 hcuses were constructed in Classical Re-
vival or Neoclassic Styles. Perhaps the finest block of this type of house is
the 1900 block of South Street, which features six houses (#10, 11, 103, 104,
105, 106) in a Neoclassic style with the characteristic two story frame or
brick building topped by a hipped rcof with hipped dormers. One of the finest
examples cf this style is #39. 1In the 1600 block cf Main several diversely-.
styled large hcuses of this period remain, including the William Aull Jr. Home
c. 1915 (#280) with its flanking pergola-covered porches. The finest example
of pure Classical Revival remains the Aull. Hcuse, c. 1904 (#359).

The Bungalow style did not become prominent in Lexington, with only about 34
buildings constructed in this style. However, two fine large examples of the
style exist in #74 and 279. 279 with a tile roof and six-light shed dormer is
a particularly fine design. ‘Mcre commen types can be seen in #514 and 525.

The Historic District #1 in the Multiple Rescurce Nomination, the Older Neigh-
borhood Historic District, encompasses the residential area containing the high-
est concentration of historic residential architecture. District #2, the Com-
mercial Community Histcric District, enccmpasses all of the traditicnal busi-
ness district of Lexington and includes several residences and adjacent blocks
whose future and viability are directly linked to the success of the business
community. The Highland Avenue Historic District is an area geographically sep-
arated from the Central Business District by its prominence cverlccking the
Misscuri River and its significance as an area with a large concentraticn of
Greek Revival structures. The majority cf the contigucus sites represent signi-
ficant examples of Italianate architecture but also include structures close to
the area but not adjacent.

The Multiple Rescurce Area includes prcperties that individually would be ex=-
empt from National Register criteria. However, when considered as an integral
part of the overall histcry and aesthetic ambience of the area, their preserva-
tion is desirable. These properties include:

(1) Macpelah Cemetery (#588). .Macpelah Cemetery was one of the first corpora-
tions to be established by an act of the Missouri Legislature in 1849. It con-
tains significant examples of local ircnwork made in the Mcrrison Foundry.

(2) Two monuments are included in the Multiple Resource Area: 1. The Madonna
of the Trail; erected in 1928 by the Daughters of the American Revolution to
commemcrate the pioneer mother. Aesthetically, this statue creates an impor-

"tant design element, overlocking the Misscuri River and lccated at a strategic

point after rcunding a curve ¢n one of the major entries to downtown from the
River. 2. Wecrld War I Mcnument; erected in 1925. This architectural monument
is an aesthetic additicn to the Misscuri River bluff below Highland Avenue and
is a fccal point after crossing the Lafayette-Ray Ccunty Bridge from Ray
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County.

(3) Fifteen religicus structures are included in the Lexington Multiple Re-
source Nomination. All of these are historically and architecturally signifi-
cant; the scattering of these buildings throughout the residential cormunity
creates a close-knit neighborhood appearance and provides visual focal-point.

(4) #306, The Lafayette County Sheriff's Office and Jail (10 S. 11th), was
built in 1939. However, it is a very fine example of "Mcdern" architecture
being modelled in a Greek Revival style so that it wculd not be intrusive to
the adjacent 1848 Lafayette County Courthouse.



NPS Form 10-800-3 OMB No. 1024-0018

oez Exp. 10-31-34
United States Department of the Interior e —
National Park Service { For NPS use only

dational Register of Historic Places received

IS

a3l ! date entered
inventopymNomina B8 RO L INVENTORY: HISTORIC AND
ARCHITECTURAL PROPERTIES) B T
Continuation sheet Item number 8 Page 7

FOOTNOTES

N1
i
M
$

g
!
s
A
H

=
3
3

“t
N
:

(RSP S

1Sesquicentennial Ccmmemcrative Booklet, Lexington, Missouri
(Higginsville, Misscuri: Advance Publishing and Printing Company, 1972),
pc 55

2Tbid., p. 2.

31Ibid., p. b.

”Katherine Wilson Sellers, Histcriecal Glimpses of Lexington (Lexington
Library and Histcriecal Association, January, 1980), p. 13.

5Sesquicentennial, p. 6.

6William Young, Young's History of Lafayette County (Indianapolis, Indiana:
B. F. Bcwen and Company, 1910), p. 20.

7Sesquicentenniél, p. 54.
8Sellers, p. 34,
9Seller's, p. 34,

10Young, p. 20.

Msellers, p. 39.

Item No. 9 Page 1

3. Ycung, Williem. Ycung's History of Lafayette County. Indianapclis,
Indiana: B.F. Bowen and Co., 1910.




9. Major Biblicgrarhical References
TEXINgLoN, Missourt sesquicentennial COMMENmMoTdtIve BUUKIEL, mrrggtsv e tssourt™—
‘vance Publishing Co., 1972 :

<. (lers, Katherine Wilson., Historical Glimpses of Lexington. The Lexington Library
and Historical Association, 1980.

10. Geographical Dat
approx. 5,057 Acres 7

Acreage of nominated property

Quadrangle names_Lexington West and East

Quadrangle ;cale Lﬁ:ﬂ.oo

UTM References i Tey _ T I
Alus) Lal2i62,7,0 [413]3,8]51410] 115l (4]2,6[2,2,0] [4,313,3]4)3,0]
Zone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing
cl5] [42:2[146:0] [4,3]3,3]5,0,0] o (1,5 [4]2,2]2,2,0] |4,3]3,8[5,8,0]
el JLb by bbb by g . T O T T RN I A A A
G L] Jo eyl Hl ] |
L. ] B ! Ll tion st [.] claa bbb e b !

Verbal boundary description and justification

See appropriate district boundary déscriptions contained in Item 7.

List all states and counties {for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

s.aate code county code

11. Form Prepared By

nameftite 1. Mary J. Matthews

organization  Leéxington Historical Foundation date April, 1980

street & number P .0, Box 433, Lexington Landmarks telephone 816/259-6414

cltyortown  Lexington, state Missouri 64067

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certificaiion

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

- national X _state — local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Ofticer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89-
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certily that it has been evaluated

according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Natiopal Park Sgpvice.
State Historic Preservation Otficer signature d <
. Director, Department of Natural Resources and V

State Historic Preservation Officer date

: { {
I NPS useonly
. hereby certify that this property is included in the National Register

P

date

Keeper of lhe National Register

Attest: date




" NpS Form 109002 ‘ OMB No. 1024-0018
bz Exp. 10-31-84

united States Department of the Intericr s —_— S——
{éational Park Service | For NPS use only

¢
‘ational Register of Historic Places received
imventory—plomination For _ date entered
bl EI%TORFC" O WA B 1iGTON ( FARTIAL INVENTORY: HISTORIC AND . . . .. i
ARCHITECTURAL PROPERTIES) R
—Hemmumber——

2

Continuation sheet centinued Page 1

HIGHLAND AVENUE HISTORIC DISTRICT

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing
E. 15 422950 14336980 F. 15 422280 4337580
G. 15 1423120 4338510 H. 15 423810 4337910

COMMERCTAL COMMUNITY HISTORIC DISTRICT

I. 15 423510 4337280 J. 15 423580 4337810
K. 15 424020 4337800 L. 15 424010 14337250

OLD NEIGHBORHOODS HISTORIC DISTRICT

M. 15 u2u010 4337250 N. 15 424060 4338180
0. 15 425000 4338140 P. 15 424990 4337210
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